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14 February 2025 
Job No: 1097998.0000 

Westland District Council 
Private Bag 704 
Hokitika 7842 
 
 
Attention: Kate Fleming 
 
Dear Kate 
 

Mananui Sand Mining 

Acoustic Technical Review 

 

1 Introduction 

Tonkin & Taylor Ltd (T+T) has previously provided a technical acoustic review (the “T+T review”) of 
the Mananui mineral sand project in November 2023, on behalf of West Coast Regional Council and 
Westland District Council (T+T ref 1092706). We understand that noise is now being assessed by 
Westland District Council and that a RFI was sent out to the applicant on 15 January 2024 including 
noise matters as raised in our original review. The applicant has subsequently provided a noise 
response prepared by Marshall Day Acoustics (MDA) (the “MDA response”). 

This letter report presents our opinion as to whether the MDA response has addressed the acoustic 
matters, and if applicable, any outstanding issues that need to be addressed. 

We have also viewed the updated AEE (dated December 2024) and proposed consent conditions as 
provided. 

2 RFI issues 

The following sections set out the issues raised in our previous technical acoustic review, and 
information subsequently provided in the MDA response. 

2.1 Daytime noise limit 

Our original concern was that the pTTPP noise limits are already more lenient than the ODP limits, 
allowing 55 dB LAeq(15min) 8 am to 8 pm on weekends and public holidays. (The ODP limits only 
permit 55 dB LA10 from 7 am to 6 pm on a Saturday, remaining at the night-time level of 45 dB LA10 
all day on Sundays and public holidays.) The operating hours requested by the Applicant extend the 
permitted pTTPP limits by one hour in the morning and two hours in the evening, i.e. 7 am to 10 pm 
on both Saturdays and Sundays. We still consider that this may negatively impact on the residential 
noise amenity value of residents.  

These noise limits are only likely to come into play when works are relatively close to dwellings. As 
works will be 24/7, and in a similar location as works progress slowly, the amenity of residents, 
including respite from the higher level of noise during the day, will remain important. 
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We have reviewed other similar projects on the West Coast. For example, the conditions proposed 
for the Westland mineral sand mining project (Buller District Council) are broadly similar to those 
proposed here, allowing for 55 dB LAeq(15min) between 8 am and 10 pm all days (noting that this is 
at the property boundary rather than the notional boundary). By contrast, the Environment Court 
decision 2024 NZEnvC 238 (for open cast mineral sands mining and processing on the Barrytown 
Flats, Grey District Council) does not permit mining activities other than processing plant outside 
daylight hours. 

Given the general intent of the noise limits in the pTTPP, we raise no further objections to the 
proposed noise limits for the site. Although we note that if operations occur throughout the day, 
there will be no respite for residents as noise could be produced at a level of 55 dB LAeq (15min) 
every day of the week. 

2.2 Setback distance 

From the contour plots referenced in the MDA response, operating equipment other than the fixed 
processing plant is as follows: 

Equipment operating both day and night: 

• 1x dredge 

• 1x field screening unit 

• 1x diesel generator (with noise control) 

• 1x 220 kW pump 

Equipment operating daytime only: 

• 2x excavator 

• 1x dozer 

• 1x grader 

• 1x loader 

• 2x dump trucks 

We understand that the equipment that is operating both day and night is not readily moveable, and 
that it will progress (move) slowly as the area is mined. On this assumption, if the dredge, field 
screening unit etc are operating at 85 m from a dwelling during the day, they will need to continue 
running in the same location at night, as we assume that it cannot be relocated easily based on T+T’s 
experience of similar projects. We do not see how the proposed setback distances of 85 m during 
the day and 115 m at night will work in practice. 

We note that the MDA response considers that it is practicable to comply with the two set-back 
distances. On that basis, we agree that the 85 m and 115 m distances are appropriate for the day 
and night respectively.  

We agree that setback distances can be reduced if monitoring shows that compliance can be 
achieved, which is incorporated into the conditions (condition is not numbered, between 17.4 and 
17.5). 

2.3 Truck noise 

MDA has provided an assessment of truck noise in the MDA response. We agree that effects are 
likely to be reasonable and consistent with the existing traffic noise. We note that proposed 
Condition 15.3 controls air braking via the traffic management plan. The inclusion of this restriction 
is important when managing noise effects, especially at night. 
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If there are reasonable concerns from residents then a limit on night-time trucks could be applied 
(either movement limit or a curfew between certain hours), as was the case in the Barrytown Flats 
decision. However, based on the information provided we agree that the overall noise effects of 
additional traffic movements are likely to remain similar to the effects generated by existing traffic. 

2.4 Avifauna 

We have no additional concerns regarding avifauna. We note that no concerns regarding proximity 
of mining equipment are raised in the ecological report1. 

3 Proposed conditions 

Table 3.1 sets out the Applicant’s proposed conditions, together with T+T’s comments. 

Table 3.1: Proposed conditions and T+T comment 

Condition # Condition T+T comment 

12.0 Hours of Operation 

12.1 

 

Clarified in the RFI 
response: topsoil 
stripping and 
rehabilitation 7 am 
to 7 pm only. 

Otherwise 2 shifts: 7 
am to 10 pm, 10 pm 
to 7 am 

15.0 Transport 

15.1 

 

Support 

15.3 

 

Noted that use of air 
brakes is controlled 
via the TMP. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1 BlueGreen Ecology Limited 2024. Mananui Garnet Mine: Ecological Assessment. Report prepared by BlueGreen Ecology 
Limited for Westland Mineral Sands Co.  Ltd. 
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Condition # Condition T+T comment 

17.0 Noise 

17.1 

 

The final NMP 
should be submitted 
to Council for 
certification. 

We agree that the 
scope of the NMP is 
acceptable. 

17.2 

 

 

Hours for daytime 
and night-time are 
not defined. These 
need including in 
this condition. 

17.3 

 

Ongoing noise 
monitoring should 
be undertaken 
regularly, especially 
when works are at 
their closest point to 
neighbours. We 
suggest annual 
monitoring during 
operation. 

17.4 

 

No comment 

# 

 

See discussion 
above. 

Revising setback 
distances following 
monitoring results is 
standard practice – 
no further comment. 

17.5 
 

Support 

17.6 

 

Support 

17.7 
 

Support 
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4 Summary 

We have provided comment on the MDA response to the queries arising from our initial acoustic 
technical review. We have residual concerns over the amenity for residents due to the 55 dB 
LAeq (15min) daytime noise limit extending until 10 pm at weekends and public holidays, but there 
is precedent for this at Barrytown Flats and appears to be the intent of the pTTPP so we raise no 
further comments.  

We still do not fully understand how the proposed setbacks will work in practice . However, the 
MDA response considers that it is practicable to comply with the two distances. No further comment 
is required. 

The assessment of truck noise demonstrates that noise effects are expected to be reasonable.  

We have no additional concerns regarding avifauna. 

We have provided our comments on the proposed conditions for the project. 
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5 Applicability 

This report has been prepared for the exclusive use of our client Westland District Council, with 
respect to the particular brief given to us and it may not be relied upon in other contexts or for any 
other purpose, or by any person other than our client, without our prior written agreement. 

 

We understand and agree that this report will be used by Westland District Council in undertaking its 
regulatory functions in connection with the Mananui Sand Mining project. 

 

Tonkin & Taylor Ltd 

 

Report prepared by: Authorised for Tonkin & Taylor Ltd by: 

 

 

.......................................................... ...........................….......…............... 

Lindsay Leitch Darran Humpheson 
Acoustics/Noise Specialist Project Director 

 
14-Feb-25 
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